
FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA NO. 2014–18 

REGULAR MEETING SEPTEMBER 22, 2014 
FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

800 CUSHMAN STREET, FAIRBANKS, ALASKA 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

7:00 P.M. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
 
2. INVOCATION 
 
 
3. FLAG SALUTATION 
 
 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND CONSENT AGENDA 
 

(Approval of Consent Agenda passes all routine items indicated by an asterisk 
(*).  Consent Agenda items are not considered separately unless a Council 
Member so requests.  In the event of such a request, the item is returned to the 
General Agenda). 

 
 
5. CITIZENS COMMENTS, oral communications to Council on any item not up for 

Public Hearing.  Testimony is limited to five (5) minutes.  Any person wishing to 
speak needs to complete the register located in the hallway.  Normal standards 
of decorum and courtesy should be observed by all speakers.  Remarks should 
be directed to the City Council as a body rather than to any particular Council 
Member or member of the staff.  In consideration of others, kindly silence all cell 
phone, electronic and messaging devices.  

 
 
6. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES 
 
 
7. SPECIAL ORDERS 
 

 a) The Fairbanks City Council, Sitting as a Committee of the Whole, will hear 
interested citizens concerned with the following Appeal of Revocation of 
Chauffeur License. Public Testimony will be taken and limited to five (5) 
minutes.  

 
   Appellant:  Mark Siivola 

Agenda Packet - September 22, 2014 1 of 37



Agenda No. 2014–18 SEPTEMBER 22, 2014 Page 2 of 2 

8. MAYOR'S COMMENTS AND REPORT 
 
 
9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

 a) Ordinance No. 5957 – An Ordinance Amending Fairbanks General Code 
Sections 2-260 and 2-261 Regarding the Authorized Investment 
Selections of the City Permanent Fund Investment Policy.  Introduced by 
Mayor Eberhart and Council Member Gatewood.  SECOND READING 
AND PUBLIC HEARING.  

 
 
10. NEW BUSINESS 
 

*a) Resolution No. 4643 – A Resolution to Accept Funding from the Alaska 
Highway Safety Office for the FFY2015 Traffic Safety Program.  
Introduced by Mayor Eberhart.   

 
 
11. DISCUSSION ITEMS (INFORMATION AND REPORT) 
 

 a) Committee Reports 
 
 
12. COMMUNICATIONS TO COUNCIL 
 

*a) Clay Street Cemetery Commission Meeting Minutes of August 6, 2014 
 
*b) Chena Riverfront Commission Meeting Minutes of August 13, 2014 
 
*c) Appointment to the Hotel/Motel Discretionary Fund Committee 

 
 
13. COUNCIL MEMBERS’ COMMENTS 
 
 
14. CITY CLERK’S REPORT 
 
 *a) Approval of Election Judges for the 2014 Municipal Election 
 
 
15. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
 
16. EXECUTIVE SESSION – Labor Negotiations:  Fairbanks Firefighters Union 
 
 
17. ADJOURNMENT 

Agenda Packet - September 22, 2014 2 of 37







City of Fairbanks   Office of the City Clerk 

           800 Cushman Street  Fairbanks, AK  99701   (907)459-6702 
              Fax  (907)459-6710 

 
 
 
September 4, 2014 
 
 
 
Mark C Siivola 

 
 

 
Re:   Revocation of City of Fairbanks Chauffeur License 
        Certified Letter # 7011 3110 0002 3026 7115 
 
Dear Mr. Siivola: 
 
The City of Fairbanks issued a chauffeur license in your name effective March 12, 2014, expiring 
on March 11, 2016.  However, in light of your September 2nd, 2014 conviction of a Class A 
Misdemeanor for Assault in the 4th Degree, information provided by the State of Alaska Court 
System, and pursuant to the Fairbanks General Code of Ordinances Chapter 86, Division 3, Section 
86.83(3) and 86.83(4)(c), the license issued to you in 2014 is hereby revoked effective on this day.   
 
Please submit your license to the Office of the City Clerk. If you have any questions regarding the 
revocation of this license, you may contact the City Clerk’s Office at 459-6702.   
 
A copy of the Fairbanks Code of Ordinances Chapter 86 Division 3 is attached. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Tanya Clooten 
 
Deputy City Clerk I 
 
 
cc: Janey Hovenden, City Clerk 

D. Danyielle Snider, Deputy City Clerk II 
Fairbanks Police Department 
File 

 



Criminal Charge History

WARNING:  This criminal history may not be complete due to limited information.  These records are from State of Alaska 

courts only and include computerized records since 1992 only.  Computerized case information prior to implementation of 

CourtView is very limited.  Contact the trial court for detailed information about a case or for records prior to 1992.

NOTE:  Criminal cases removed from the public index pursuant to Administrative Rule 40(a) do not display on this report.

Print Date 9/17/2014

Last Name:  SIIVOLA

DOB:  

First Name:  MARK

 Search Criteria:

Offense Date

Dispo Date Modifier DV

Case Number

File Date

    Charge

Defendant

Action Code

Disposition

DLN#

APSIN#

4FA-14-01232CR
Siivola, Mark Christopher

 DLN:   

APSIN:  04/27/2014

AS11.56.757(a)(misdA): Violate Condition Of ReleaseCHRG 1 04/27/2014

Dismissed by Prosecution (CrR43(a))Disposition: 08/29/2014

4FA-13-00744CR
Siivola, Mark Christopher

 DLN:   

APSIN:  03/21/2013

AS28.15.291(a)(1): Drive w/ License Canc/Susp/Revoked/LimCHRG 1 03/15/2013

Dismissed by Prosecution (CrR43(a))Disposition: 12/23/2013

4FA-13-00277CR
Siivola, Mark Christopher

 DLN:   

APSIN:  02/01/2013

AS11.41.210(a)(1): Assault 2 - Injury w/ Weapon, IntentCHRG 1 01/31/2013

Amended: AS11.41.230(a)(1): Assault In The 4th Degree - Recklessly Injure

Indicted: AS11.41.210(a)(1): Assault 2 - Injury w/ Weapon, Intent

Guilty Conviction After Guilty PleaDisposition: 09/02/2014

AS11.41.210(a)(1): Assault 2 - Injury w/ Weapon, IntentCHRG 2 01/31/2013

Indicted: AS11.41.210(a)(1): Assault 2 - Injury w/ Weapon, Intent

Dismissed by Prosecution (CrR43(a))Disposition: 09/02/2014

AS11.56.540(a)(1): Tamper Witness 1- Influence TestimonyCHRG 3 01/31/2013

Indicted: AS11.56.540(a)(1): Tamper Witness 1- Influence Testimony

Guilty Conviction After Guilty PleaDisposition: 09/02/2014

AS28.35.030(a)(2): DUI-  BAC .08+ PercentCHRG 4 01/31/2013

Dismissed by Prosecution (CrR43(a))Disposition: 09/02/2014

AS11.41.220(a)(1)(A): Assault 3- Cause Fear Of Injury w/ WeapCHRG 5 01/31/2013

Indicted: AS11.41.220(a)(1)(A): Assault 3- Cause Fear Of Injury w/ Weap

Dismissed by Prosecution (CrR43(a))Disposition: 09/02/2014

4FA-11-03799CR
Siivola, Mark Christopher

 DLN:   

APSIN:  11/06/2011

AS11.41.230(a)(3): Assault 4-Cause Fear Of InjuryCHRG 1 11/05/2011

Dismissed by Prosecution (CrR43(a))Disposition: 04/24/2012

NoAS11.41.230(a)(1): Assault In The 4th Degree - Recklessly InjureCHRG 2 11/05/2011

Dismissed by Prosecution (CrR43(a))Disposition: 04/24/2012

4FA-11-00645CR
Siivola, Mark C

 DLN:   

APSIN:  02/22/2011

NoAS28.15.291(a)(1): Drive w/ License Canc/Susp/Revoked/LimCHRG 1 02/06/2011

Amended: AS28.15.011: Drive w/o Valid Operator License

Guilty Conviction After Guilty PleaDisposition: 07/06/2011

NoAS28.22.011: No Motor Vehicle Liability InsuranceCHRG 2 02/06/2011

Dismissed by Prosecution (CrR43(a))Disposition: 07/06/2011

NoPTRP - New Criminal ChargeCHRG 3 11/06/2011

PTRP: Dismissed or Declined by ProsecutorDisposition: 04/24/2012

PTRP - New Criminal ChargeCHRG 4 03/21/2013

PTRP: Probation Modified/ContinuedDisposition: 12/23/2013

Page 1 of 2

TCCLOOTEN
Highlight

TCCLOOTEN
Highlight



Criminal Charge History
Offense Date

Dispo Date Modifier DV

Case Number

File Date

    Charge

Defendant

Action Code

Disposition

DLN#

APSIN#

4FA-09-03717CR
Siivola, Mark Christopher

 DLN:   

APSIN:09/21/2009

NoAS11.61.110(a)(6): Disord Conduct- Create Hazard ConditionCHRG 1 09/20/2009

Dismissed by Prosecution (CrR43(a))Disposition: 07/16/2010

4FA-08-03948CR
Siivola, Mark Christopher

 DLN:

APSIN:  12/01/2008

NoAS28.35.030(a): DUI - Operate Vehic Under Infl Alc/DrugCHRG 1 11/30/2008

Amended: AS28.35.400: Reckless Driving

Guilty Conviction After Guilty PleaDisposition: 06/30/2009

NoAS28.35.032(a): Refuse To Submit To Chemical TestCHRG 2 11/30/2008

Dismissed by Prosecution (CrR43(a))Disposition: 06/30/2009

NoAS28.10.481: Improper Use Of Regis/Title/PlatesCHRG 3 11/30/2008

Dismissed by Prosecution (CrR43(a))Disposition: 06/30/2009

NoAS28.35.029: Open Container Of Alcoholic Beverage In Motor VehicleCHRG 4 11/30/2008

Dismissed by Prosecution (CrR43(a))Disposition: 06/30/2009

NoPTRP - New Criminal ChargeCHRG 5 09/21/2009

PTRP: Probation Modified/ContinuedDisposition: 07/16/2010

End of Report

Page 2 of 2





Introduced by:  Mayor Eberhart 
Council Member Gatewood 

Permanent Fund Review Board Approval: July 23, 2014 
     Introduced:  September 8, 2014 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 5957 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING FAIRBANKS GENERAL CODE 
SECTIONS 2-260 AND 2-261 REGARDING THE AUTHORIZED 
INVESTMENT SELECTIONS OF THE CITY PERMANENT FUND 

INVESTMENT POLICY   
 

WHEREAS, the City Council established the investment policy of the City 
Permanent Fund by terms codified at Fairbanks General Code Sections 2-260 and 2-
261; and 
 

WHEREAS, current policy authorizes an “International Bond Index Fund” allocation 
class which is defined as replicating the Barclays Capital Global Treasury ex-U.S. 
Capped index; and 

 
WHEREAS, current policy authorizes performance measurement for the 

International Bond allocation against the Barclays Capital Global Treasury ex. U.S. 
Capped Index; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City’s Permanent Fund Investment Manager, Alaska Permanent 

Capital Management recommends amendment to the investment policy to replicate the 
International Equity allocation and performance against the Barclays Global Aggregate 
ex-USD Float Adjusted RIC Capped Index. The amendment will not materially change 
performance but should improve the overall risk/reward tradeoff by reducing volatility of 
this segment of the portfolio and by helping keep investment fees low; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City Permanent Fund Review Board supports and recommends 

these amendments. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF FAIRBANKS, as follows [new text shown in underline bold font; deleted text in 
strikethrough font]: 
 
Sec. 2-260. Permanent fund investment policy, procedure and governance. 

 
(a)  Purpose of fund.  The purpose of the permanent fund is to maximize 
income for capital and operating expenses of the city and preserve in trust 
assets of the city for present and future generations of city residents. The 
principal goal shall be to preserve principal and maintain purchasing 
power. 
 

Agenda Packet - September 22, 2014 9 of 37



Ordinance No. 5957 
Page 2 of 7 

(b)  Investment policy.  The investment policy of the city is to allow only 
the following investment vehicles.  
 

(1)  Obligations of or obligations insured or guaranteed by the United 
States or agencies or instrumentalities of the United States; 
 
(2)  Bonds or other taxable yield U.S. dollar denominated debt instruments 
of this state, its agencies, municipalities, any other state, or corporation 
which at the time of investment have an investment grade rating of a 
nationally recognized rating agency; if the rating of a bond becomes less 
than investment grade and has a maturity greater than one year, it must 
be sold in an orderly manner within 90 days of down grading; 
 
(3)  Bank certificates of deposit which are insured or secured as to the 
payment of principal and interest; 
 
(4)  Corporate obligations of investment grade quality as recognized by a 
nationally recognized rating organization. If, after purchase, these 
obligations are downgraded below investment grade, they shall be sold in 
an orderly manner within 90 days of down grading.  In no circumstance 
shall any bond be purchased after January 1, 2009 with a yield to maturity 
that exceeds 600 basis points above a comparable duration treasury 
note/bond at the date of purchase. 
 
(5)  Short term investment funds (STIF) which are limited to investments 
set forth in subsections (b)(1)-(4) of this section or the Alaska Municipal 
League Investment Pool as set forth in state statute; and 
 
(6)  Domestic equities, which taken as a whole, attempt to replicate the 
Standard & Poor's 500 Index, including both mutual funds and exchange 
traded funds (ETF's). 
 
(7)  International equities, which taken as a whole, attempt to replicate the 
FTSE Developed ex North America Index, including both mutual funds 
and exchange traded funds (ETF's). 
 
(8)  Equities, which taken as a whole, attempt to replicate the universe of 
domestic real-estate investment trusts, including both mutual funds and 
exchange traded funds (ETF's). 
 
(9)  Domestic equities, which taken as a whole, attempt to replicate the  
S&P 400 MidCap Index, including both mutual funds and exchange traded 
funds (ETF's). 
 
(10)  Commodities, which taken as a whole, attempt to replicate a broad 
based commodity index, such as the Dow-Jones UBS Commodity Index, 

Agenda Packet - September 22, 2014 10 of 37



Ordinance No. 5957 
Page 3 of 7 

including mutual funds, exchange traded funds (ETF’s) and exchange 
traded notes (ETN’s). 
 
(11)  Emerging markets equity index funds, which taken as a whole, 
attempt to replicate the FTSE Emerging Market Index, including both 
mutual funds and (ETF’s). 
 
(12)  International Bond index funds, which taken as a whole, attempt to 
replicate Barclays Capital Global Treasury ex-U.S. Capped Index 
Barclays Global Aggregate ex-USD Float Adjusted RIC Capped Index, 
including both mutual funds and ETF’s. 
 
(13)  U.S. Treasury Inflation Protected Securities (TIPS), and/or mutual 
funds or ETF’s which attempt to replicate the Barclays Capital U.S. 
Treasury Inflation Protected Securities Index. 

 
 

(c)  Limitations.  The following investment practices are prohibited and 
shall constitute limitations to fund investments:  
 

(1)  Options and futures may not be purchased or sold; complex 
derivatives and complex structured notes which provide for uncertain 
payment dates and amounts are prohibited without the express, written 
consent of the city council, as are practices which involve the use of 
leveraging through reverse repurchase agreements; 
 
(2)  Investments in U.S. dollar denominated obligations of corporations 
shall be limited to a percentage level as provided for by the city council 
from time to time. Investment grade to be defined by at least one 
nationally recognized rating service. The investment in the lowest level of 
investment grade securities is to be limited to no more than ten percent of 
the marketable debt securities; 
 
(3)  No investment shall be made in any one individual security or issuer in 
excess of five percent of the total investment portfolio, measured by 
market value, except for obligations of the U.S. government and its 
agencies. 
 
(4)  No investments, cumulatively, shall be made in any one industry in 
excess of 25 percent of the total investment portfolio except for obligations 
of the U.S. and its agencies without quarterly disclosure to the Review 
Board for consideration. 
 
(5) Effective January 1, 2009, no commercial residential mortgaged 
backed securities (MBS, etc. but not to exclude securities issued by a U.S. 

Agenda Packet - September 22, 2014 11 of 37



Ordinance No. 5957 
Page 4 of 7 

government agency) and no further commercial mortgage backed 
securities (CMBS, etc) may be purchased. 
 

(d)  Transactional records.  The board shall maintain on file within the 
offices of the city, monthly reports which indicate the following:   
 

(1)  All transactions affecting the investment account, to include purchases 
and sales of securities, transfers of cash into and out of the account, 
interest or dividends received by the account; and 
 
(2)  A listing of all assets held in the investment account, including 
identification of the security, original purchase price, and current market 
price. 

 
(e)  Fund performance evaluation.  The city council and the board may 
have an objective performance evaluation of the investment program 
every year. The board may retain a performance measurement consultant 
whose contractual purpose will be to provide objective measurement of 
the performance of investment managers and the portfolio against 
appropriate indices, universes and/or benchmarks as recommended by 
the consultant and adopted by the city council and the board. Portfolio 
performance may be reviewed by the consultant at least semiannually with 
the city council and the board. Such consultant may not manage in any 
capacity any portion of the portfolio.  
 
(f)  Custodian bank.  The city council and the board shall retain a bank 
custodian to hold all investment cash and securities in the name of the 
city's permanent fund. The custodian shall render monthly reports to the 
city council and the board regarding assets held at both book and market 
values, and individual transactions which have taken place. The bank shall 
have adequate fidelity insurance. A written contract will be entered into 
between the city and the custodian bank. 
 
(g)  Investment managers. The city council and the board shall retain one 
or more professional investment managers to design portfolios and invest 
funds in accordance with the written investment policies adopted by the 
city council. The investment managers must be registered financial 
advisers with both the United States Securities and Exchange 
Commission and the state and may not serve in any multiple role as 
investment manager or securities broker custodian. They must agree to 
serve as a fiduciary to the fund and carry professional liability insurance in 
the minimum amount of $5,000,000.00. A written contract must be entered 
into between the fund and the investment managers.  
 
(h)  Fiduciary status; conflict of interest.  The board shall be considered to 
have the responsibility of a fiduciary to the fund and shall be indemnified 

Agenda Packet - September 22, 2014 12 of 37



Ordinance No. 5957 
Page 5 of 7 

by the city in any action brought against them collectively or individually 
while acting in this capacity. No board member may act on behalf of the 
board in any manner involving the investments of the portfolio or its 
management pursuant to this policy, except as specifically authorized by 
the city council in writing.  
 
(i)  Prudent investor rule.  The city council, the board, the staff, the 
investment managers and the bank custodians shall exercise the 
judgment and care under the circumstances then prevailing which an 
investor of ordinary prudence, discretion and intelligence exercises in the 
management of large investments entrusted to it, not in regard to 
speculation, but in regard to the long-term investment of funds considering 
the probable safety of capital as well as probable income. 
 
(j)  Balance available for appropriation.  The city council may only 
appropriate from the permanent fund as follows: In any fiscal year, an 
amount not to exceed four percent of the five-year average fund market 
value, to be computed using the five prior years' year end audited market 
value, for the city operations, and an additional 0.5 percent solely for 
capital needs. 
 

Sec. 2-261. Permanent fund asset allocation plan and performance measurement 
targets. The target for equities is 45% of the portfolio with an allowable range of 
30% to 60%. The target for fixed income is 55% of the portfolio with an allowable 
range of 40% to 70%. 

 
(a)  Within the overall guidelines for equities and fixed income 
investments, the asset allocation targets and ranges are as follows: 

 
 

            Asset Class

Target %                               

Weighting Range %

Equities - Overall 45 30 - 60

Large Cap Equity 22 15 - 50

Mid Cap Equity 3 0 - 10

Small Cap Equity 2 0 - 10

InternationalEquity 9 0 - 15

Emerging Markets Equity 4 0 -10

Real Estate Equity 5 0 - 10

Fixed Income -  Overall 55  40 -70

US Bonds meeting Ordinance Criteria 40 30 - 70

InternationalBonds 5 0 - 10

U.S Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 5 0 - 10

Cash/1-3 month Treasuries 5 0 - 10

Commodities 0 0 - 10

Agenda Packet - September 22, 2014 13 of 37



Ordinance No. 5957 
Page 6 of 7 

(b)  The performance of the investment advisors for the overall portfolio will be 
measured against the weighted blended target allocation plus 50 basis points 
(0.5%).  Components of the portfolio will be measured as follows: 

 
1.  Performance measurement of the Domestic Equity allocation will 
be measured against the Target Weighting, using the Standard & 
Poor's 500 as the benchmark. 
 
2.  Performance measurement for the Mid/Small Cap Equity 
allocation will be measured against the Target Weighting, using the 
Standard & Poor's 400 MidCap Index as the benchmark. 
 
3.  Performance measurement for the International Equity allocation 
will be measured against the target weighting using the FTSE 
Developed ex North America Index for the benchmark. 
 
4.  Performance measurement for the real estate allocation will be 
measured against the target weighting using the Standard & Poor's 
REIT Index for the benchmark. 
 
5.  Performance measurement for the U.S. Bond allocation will be 
measured against the target weighting using the Barclays Capital 
U.S. Aggregate Bond Index for the benchmark. Duration should be 
maintained between 80 percent and 120 percent of the duration of 
the benchmark. 
 
6.  Performance measurement of the commodity allocation will be 
measured against the target weighting, using a broad based index 
such as the Dow Jones-UBS Commodity Index, selected by the 
Permanent Fund Review Board. 
 
7.  Performance measurement for the emerging markets equity 
allocation will be measured against the target weighting using the 
FTSE Emerging Market Index. 
 
8.  Performance measurement for the international bond allocation 
will be measured against the target weighting using the Barclays 
Capital Global Treasury ex. U.S. Capped Index Barclays Global 
Aggregate ex-USD Float Adjusted RIC Capped Index. 
 
9.  Performance measurement for the U.S. Treasury Inflation 
Protected Securities (TIPS) allocation will be measured against the 
target weighting using the Barclays Capital U.S. Treasury Inflation 
Protected Securities Index. 

 
 

Agenda Packet - September 22, 2014 14 of 37



Ordinance No. 5957 
Page 7 of 7 

 
Section 3:  That the effective date of this Ordinance shall be the ____day of September 
2014. 
 
       _______________________________ 

John Eberhart, City Mayor 
 
AYES:    
NAYS:   
ABSENT:    
ADOPTED: 
 
 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
_________________________________ _______________________________ 

  Janey Hovenden, MMC, City Clerk  Paul J Ewers, City Attorney 

Agenda Packet - September 22, 2014 15 of 37



Introduced by:  Mayor John Eberhart 
Finance Committee Review: September 16, 2014 

   Introduced:  September 22, 2014 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 4643 
 

A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT FUNDING FROM THE ALASKA 
HIGHWAY SAFETY OFFICE FOR THE FFY2015 TRAFFIC SAFETY 

PROGRAM 
 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks has received supplemental funding from the 
Alaska Highway Safety Office (AHSO) for local law enforcement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has received positive citizen feedback regarding continued 
traffic enforcement, particularly in the apprehension of DUI offenders; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City needs to upgrade the forensic data collection system that is 
used to provide critical evidence in traffic crashes that can aid in the investigation and 
prosecution of impaired drivers; and  
  
 WHEREAS, the City was awarded $12,700.00 to upgrade the forensic data 
collection system, and no match is required; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council that the Mayor is 
authorized to accept and execute any and all documents required for expending funds 
on behalf of the City for the forensic data collection system upgrade project. 
 

PASSED and APPROVED this ____ day of September 2014. 
 
 

___________________________ 
John Eberhart, Mayor 

 
 
AYES:    
NAYS:   
ABSENT   
APPROVED:   
 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
______________________________ _____________________________ 
Janey Hovenden, MMC, City Clerk Paul J. Ewers, City Attorney 

Agenda Packet - September 22, 2014 16 of 37



Ordinance or Resolution No: 4643

Abbreviated Title: FFY2015 ALASKA HIGHWAY SAFETY OFFICE GRANT EQUIPMENT

Does the adoption of this ordinance or resolution authorize:

1) additional costs beyond the current adopted budget? Yes No x

2) additional support or maintenance costs? Yes No x

  see note below

3) additional positions beyond the current adopted budget? Yes No x

  (F - Full Time, P - Part Time, T - Temporary)

2014 2015 2016 Beyond Total

$0

$0

$0

$0

$12,700 $12,700

$0

$0
$12,700 $0 $0 $0 $12,700

2014 2015 2016 Beyond Total

$0

Capital Fund $0

$12,700 $12,700

$0

$0

$0

In-Kind Match $0

$0
$12,700 $0 $0 $0 $12,700

Initial mb Date 9/15/2014

TOTAL

NOTE:   The equipment does not require annual licensing or maintenance fees; therefore, the City does not 
anticipate any additional costs associated with this purchase.  

Reviewed by Finance Department:

General Fund 

Federal Grant

State Grant  

Company Grant

Cash Match

Other

ESTIMATED FUNDING SOURCES

II.  FINANCIAL DETAIL:

ESTIMATED EXPENDITURES

Personnel Wages DUI Officers

Personnel Benefits DUI Officers

Personnel Wages Supv & Commander

Personnel Benefits Supv & Commander

Equipment Upgrade

Contractual

Travel
TOTAL

If yes, type of positions?

CITY OF FAIRBANKS

FISCAL NOTE

I.  REQUEST:

     If yes, what is the estimate?

     If yes, how many positions?

 

Agenda Packet - September 22, 2014 17 of 37



Agenda Packet - September 22, 2014 18 of 37



Agenda Packet - September 22, 2014 19 of 37



Agenda Packet - September 22, 2014 20 of 37



Agenda Packet - September 22, 2014 21 of 37



Agenda Packet - September 22, 2014 22 of 37



Agenda Packet - September 22, 2014 23 of 37



Agenda Packet - September 22, 2014 24 of 37



Agenda Packet - September 22, 2014 25 of 37



Fairbanks North Star Borough / City of Fairbanks 
CHENA RIVERFRONT COMMISSION 

MINUTES 
August 13, 2014 

 
The Fairbanks North Star Borough/City of Fairbanks Chena Riverfront Commission (CRFC) met on 
Wednesday, August 13, 2014 with Co-Chair Plager presiding. The following Commission members 
were in attendance: Co-Chair Kelley Hegarty-Lammers, John Jackovich, Bob Henszey, Susan 
Rainey, Gordy Schlosser, Julie Jones, Matt Wilken, Lee Wood and Buki Wright. 

 
Also present were: Nancy Durham, FNSB Planner, Kellen Spillman, FNSB Community Planning; 
Steve Taylor, FNSB Parks & Recreation; Jewelz Barker, TVWA; Jackson Fox, City of Fairbanks; 
Donna Gardino, FMATS; Margaret Carpenter, DOT; Sarah Schacher, DOT; Lissa Hughes, TVWA; 
and Laura McLean, FNSB Recording Clerk. 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
Plager called the meeting to order at 12:00 p.m. 

 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
Plager suggested that the agenda be adjusted so that the presentation by Sarah Schacher, 
DOT, can be the first item discussed. 

 
A motion was made by Wood, seconded by Henszey to approve the adjusted Agenda for 
August 13, 2014. There were no objections. 

 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF July 9, 2014 

 
Carpenter commented that she was the person whose name was missing from the minutes on 
page 8. 

 
A motion was made by Henszey, seconded by Schlosser to approve the corrected minutes for 
July 9, 2014. There were no objections. 

 
4. COMMUNICATIONS TO THE COMMISSION 

 
Barker distributed a letter for the Commission to review. The letter is regarding the book that 
the TVWA has written about the Chena River. She commented that with the assistance of 
Commissioner McEnteer, Ft. Wainwright is looking to purchase 1,000 of the books for 
distribution to military families relocating to Ft. Wainwright. As these will need to be published, 
TVWA is looking to piggyback on this order for a quantity discount as the TVWA is out of books 
presently. Barker commented that what she is asking the Commission to consider is to look to 
TVWA as a “tool” to be utilized by the Commission in terms of  being able to promote the 
mission of the CRFC. 

 
On the reverse side of the letter, TVWA has listed their own priorities which they intend to 
address so as to be in compliance with Goal 5, Policy 3, Objective F of the Chena Riverfront 
Commission Master Plan. 

 
In conclusion, TVWA is asking the assistance of the CRFC to help to raise funds for TVWA. 
She stated that they did receive $5,800 from GVEA from their Goodcents program and would 
like to have the assistance of the CRFC to match these funds. She is asking that members of 
the Commission solicit their family, friends, co-workers or anyone else to see if they would be 
interested in helping the TVWA and to raise awareness of what the TVWA does. The money 

Agenda Packet - September 22, 2014 26 of 37



Chena Riverf ront Commission Minut es -2- August 13, 2014  
 

raised will allow the TVWA to purchase more of the books and will also allow them to hold 
workshops which promote the mission of the book. Any donations to the cause are tax 
deductible. 

 
Barker commented that the Rain to Rivers Resource Center will be opening in September. 
They will have an open house. Lissa Hughes will have more information for the Commission 
later in the meeting when she gives her report on the Complete Streets project. 

 
5. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
None 

 
6. NEW BUSINESS 

 
None 

 
7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
A. Steese Highway to Front Street update 

 

Sarah Schacher, DOT, addressed the Commission. She gave a presentation which depicts 
the Steese Highway to Front Street project that DOT is currently working on. As it is in the 
planning process, they wanted to include the CRFC to get feedback. She handed out several 
different design plans for the Commission to review. Following the presentation, Schacher 
opened the presentation up for comments and questions. 

 
Henszey asked if the ramp in Alternate #1 will be usable by bicyclists. Schacher commented 
that these are conceptual alternatives and would have to be investigated further. 

 
Rainey inquired about parking near the park on the other side of the Steese Highway. Fox 
stated that people use that small strip of land for parking and that it is wide enough that the 
City could paint in striping for designated parking. However, it is a dead end so room would 
have to be left at the end for people to turn around. Taylor added that the name of the park 
that this area provides parking for is called Nelson Park. It is adjacent to Graehl Park on the 
East side of the Steese Highway. 

 
Jackovich asked have been made plans have been made regarding restroom facilities. 
Hegarty-Lammers added that that was also a concern when Griffin Park was being designed. 
Schacher was not sure. 

 
Wright asked if there were any land ownership issues with any of the Alternatives presented. 
Schacher responded that there were not. 

 
Schlosser commented that he has been to several of the public meetings for the Wendell 
Street bridge project and they were really informative. He asked if this project was also at that 
stage in the process. Schacher replied that this project is far before the public comment 
stage. 

 
Hegarty-Lammers asked if both alternatives 2 & 3 involve 4F. Schacher replied that they do. 
Hegarty-Lammers then commented that that levels the playing field for alternatives 2 & 3. 
She also commented that if the public has “made” a path between two points, that path is not 
going to go away. Schacher agreed that social trails do establish themselves and don’t go 
away. 

 
Plager summarized that what she has heard is that there are three things that the 
Commission would like Schacher to take back to DOT. Those three things are: 

Agenda Packet - September 22, 2014 27 of 37



Chena Riverf ront Commission Minut es -3- August 13, 2014  
 

1. Raineys comment about looking at the adjacent park on the other side of the Steese 
Highway and how the “parking lot/road” could be used for additional parking for both 
Graehl Landing and Nelson Park. 

2. Jackovichs comment about restroom facilities should be seriously considered. 
3. Hegarty-Lammers comment about the social path. Even if it is re-seeded and re- 

routed. It may be sensible to develop a nice pathway following this social path. 
 

Taylor commented that there are Port-A-Potties at Graehl Landing that Parks and Rec 
provide. 

 
Schacher added that if they were to try to discourage people from using the social path, they 
may have to do something with rails to re-route the traffic. 

 
Jackovich asked what the elevation of the path which is planned to go under Wendell Street 
bridge is going to be. Schacher responded that it will be very similar to the path which goes 
under the Wendell Street bridge near on the South side. 

 
Spillman commented that where we are with the process, DOT has sent him an Agency 
Scoping Request. He has sent it around to all the other departments in the Borough and has 
gotten their comments. The most substantial comments came from Parks and Recreation. He 
would like to finalize his comments within the next week or two so that he can get them back 
to DOT. He suggested that if the CRFC has anything that they would like to add, he would like 
to get their comments soon. If the CRFC wants to send him a letter or e-mail with their 
concerns, he would be happy to include those comments with his. 

 
Schacher commented that they would entertain general points of concern or items for both 
alternatives that the CRFC does or does not like. They can then formulate all of those 
concerns into their ultimate solution. 

 
Rainey commented that she is familiar with the park and likes the idea of keeping the bikes 
away from the play area as there are a lot of kids at that park. 

 
The consensus was that the CRFC favors Alternative #2 with the caveat that it be restricted to 
pedestrian use only, no bicycles. There was discussion of how to deter people from continuing 
to use this social path. 

 
Plager commented that she will try to summarize this discussion in an e-mail and send it to 
McLean who will forward it to Spillman. 

 
Plager reiterated that she will send an e-mail to McLean who will forward it to the 
Commissioners. If any member of the Commission has issue with the e-mail, let Plager know 
right away. If Plager does not hear back from any of the Commissioners within a few days, it 
will go to Spillman as is. 

 
B. Chena Riverfront Plan Update 

 

Hegarty-Lammers passed out a handout which depicted some of the comments that the 
CRFC has received as a result of the various meetings that the update committee has held. 
She further commented that their work session with the City Council will be held on the 25th of 
August at 6:00 in the City Council Chambers. 

 
Plager asked if there was a desire to change any of the proposed changes or to add anything 
in response to the public comments. Hegarty-Lammers responded that she feels that the 
language that states that the Plan be updated “every five years” be changed to “at least every 
ten years.” Hegarty-Lammers asked Plager to call for the question on this matter. Jackovich 
commented that he is not sure that a ten year period is appropriate. Hegarty-Lammers 

Agenda Packet - September 22, 2014 28 of 37



Chena Riverf ront Commission Minut es -4- August 13, 2014  
 

suggested that the wording be changed to read “at least every ten years”. Jones and Rainey 
agreed. Wood commented that she is comfortable with reviewing the plan every five years. 
Plager asked for a count of those who would be in favor of the working “at least every ten 
years”. All were in favor except for one Commissioner, Wood. The motion carries. 

 
C. Airport Way West Project Committee Update 

 

Schlosser distributed to the Commission a drawing that the Airport Way West Project 
Committee developed. It is merely a drawing with ideas for the open spaces that will be 
created by this project. He stressed that they were trying to come up with natural ideas which 
incorporate local materials and local vegetation. He described various alternatives and options 
for the open spaces. 

 
Plager asked Schacher what she thought the best way to communicate these ideas to DOT. 
Schacher commented that this is a great idea. She added that if this is what the community 
wants, then the community needs to come forward and say that they are willing to maintain 
this by whatever means is necessary. DOT can only enter into maintenance agreements with 
other agencies with local planning authority. She suggested that this should be an area that 
the CRFC should be focusing on as once the maintenance issue is settled, they can then start 
talking about funding and how to incorporate some of these ideas into the project. 

 
Jones added that in her experience they are very reluctant to maintain anything because it is 
just another expense. However, if the CRFC can encourage them to put it out to a non-profit 
group, it may be possible. 

 
Hegarty-Lammers proposed that the CRFC move forward by first meeting with DOT to 
present the conceptual drawing that Schlosser has drawn. Secondly, the CRFC needs to 
actively pursue funding for this conceptual plan. 

 
Schacher reminded the Commission that in order for DOT to do this project with the features 
that the CRFC would like to see there needs to be funding. 

 
There was discussion regarding entering into maintenance agreements. Taylor added that if 
the Borough were going to maintain a property, the Mayor would have to have the Assembly 
approval to enter into a maintenance agreement. 

 
Hegarty-Lammers commented that politically the CRFC needs to acknowledge the political 
environment that the Assembly will be coming from. She commented that currently the 
Assembly is not likely to be willing to fund additional enhancements. 

 
Gardino agreed that the CRFC needs to first find an entity that will be responsible for the 
maintenance and then go to the Assembly. 

 
Jackovich asked if there was a way that the CRFC can say that we will take on this 
responsibility and will find an entity to be responsible for the maintenance within a certain time 
frame. 

 
Carpenter clarified that this project is a federally funded project. With these federal funded 
projects, you enter into a maintenance commitment of 20 years. 

 
Rainey asked what the Airports’ thoughts were. 

 
Plager commented that there has been very little conversation with them. 

 
Rainey asked when the goal is of DOT for completion of design on this project.  Schacher 
replied that Carl Heim would be the best person to answer that question. 

Agenda Packet - September 22, 2014 29 of 37



Chena Riverf ront Commission Minut es -5- August 13, 2014  
 
 

Gardino asked if this design were frangible. Plager asked about the rocks being in the 
roundabout. Schacher commented that she is not sure if this would be acceptable. This would 
have to go before the design staff. 

 
Jones commented that she would be concerned about developing anything in the “teardrop” 
areas as the Borough may have liability issues regarding someone getting hurt trying to cross 
traffic to maintain these “teardrop” areas. 

 
Plager asked what kind of maintenance would be required as this has a natural environment 
theme. Schlosser responded that mainly the park area would require mowing. 

 
Hegarty-Lammers motioned that the CRFC endorse the design and example 
photographs presented today by the committee as a concept. Jones seconded this 
motion. All were in favor. There were none opposed. 

 
Plager asked if the committee would be willing to meet with DOT and identify the 
maintenance needs that must be in order for the CRFC to proceed. 

 
Gardino suggested that the committee also see Mayor Hopkins before going to DOT. 

 
D. Wendell Street Bridge Art 

 

Deferred to next meeting. 
 

8. STAFF AND LIASION COMMENTS 
 

Lissa Hughes, TVWA, presented the Commission with the results of the landowner survey 
which was recently conducted. She also extended an invitation to attend the Green Design 
Complete Streets Project Overview on August 27, 2014. 

 
9. COMMISSIONERS COMMENTS 

 
Rainey commented that if you have not gone to the new Tanana Lakes area, you need to go. 
It is very accessible to the community and a very nice place to visit. 

 
Jones asked if it would be possible to get an e-mail with the dates, times and venues for all 
of the upcoming meetings with the City, Borough Planning Commission and Assembly. 
Durham stated that she will get that out to everyone via McLean. 

 
Jackovich reiterated the need for restroom facilities within the area parks. 

 
Hegarty-Lammers commented that C.B. Bettisworth is interested in art in general and is a 
business owner in the area. Rainey will contact him to see what he is thinking and if there is 
any role for the CRFC in his process. 

 
Jones asked if the letter to DOT went out in the mail. Plager commented that it hasn’t but will 
get it out with the requested corrections. 

 
10. AGENDA SETTING FOR October 8, 2014 COMMISSION MEETING 

 

1. CRFC Plan Update 
2. Airport Way West Project Update 
3. Wendell Street Bridge Art Project 
4. Elodea Update 

Agenda Packet - September 22, 2014 30 of 37



Chena Riverf ront Commission Minut es -6- August 13, 2014  
 

11. ADJOURNMENT 
 

/l 

Agenda Packet - September 22, 2014 31 of 37



Agenda Packet - September 22, 2014 32 of 37



ENACTING LEGISLATION FGC Article IV, Hotel-Motel Tax

ENACTING LEGISLATION
WEBSITE

http://bit.ly/1sG9Rfd

EMAIL THE COMMISSION
MEMBERS

BOARD/COMMISSION
CHARACTERISTICS

The Hotel/Motel Discretionary Fund Committee shall consist of f ive community
members and a Council person w ho w ill function as the Chairman, all appointed by
the Mayor and confirmed by the City Council. Each member shall serve a three-
year term w ith a limit of tw o consecutive full terms.

MEETINGS Hotel/Motel Discretionary Fund Committee Meetings are held annually in December
and January at City Hall in the Council Chambers. Please contact the Off ice of the
City Clerk for meeting dates and times.

JOINT COMMISSION DETAILS N/A

DETAILS

City of Fairbanks, Alaska

HOTEL/MOTEL DISCRETIONARY FUND COMMITTEE

BOARD DETAILS

OVERVIEW

SIZE  6 Seats

TERM LENGTH  3 Years

TERM LIMIT  2 Terms

CONTACT

Office of the City Clerk

(907) 459-6771

cityclerk@ci.fairbanks.ak.us

The Hotel/Motel Discretionary Fund acts in an
advisory capacity to the City Council; assures
that funding is provided to organizations that
guarantee the furtherance of the promotion of the
tourist industry and other economic development
and the funding of services for the general public;
reviews applications from organizations applying
for grant dollars and makes recommendations to
the City Council for fund distribution; reviews
Fairbanks General Code (FGC), Section 74 and
makes recommendations to the City Council for
modifications and/or additions.

Agenda Packet - September 22, 2014 33 of 37



First Name Last Name

Email Address

Street Address Suite or Apt

City State Postal Code

Primary Phone Alternate Phone

Employer Job Title

Submit Date: Apr 7, 2014
Status: For Review

City of Fairbanks, AK Boards & Commissions

Application Form

Profile

Please note that profile information may be available to the public . 

Mailing Address

same

Choose your residency status.

Which Boards would you l ike to apply for?

Fairbanks Diversity Council, Hotel/Motel Discretionary Fund Committee

Interests & Experiences

Please tell us about yourself and why you want to serve.

Why are you interested in serving on a board or commission? What l i fe experience can you contribute to the benefit of the board or commission?

I am a pretty new resident to Fairbanks and Alaska. I recently retired from Law Enforcement after 28 years so
I think I have learned a lot about people. I also served on the Caliente Unified School Board for 6 years. I think
I can brink some of that experience to the table.

John Nobles

Fairbanks AK 99712

Non-Resident

Alaska Waste driver

Agenda Packet - September 22, 2014 34 of 37



Upload a Resume

Brief Personal Biography (or attach resume):

I am 53 years old. Lived in central California for the last 50 years worked in law enforcement for 28 years. I
am married and just had my 25 wedding anniversary. I have 4 grown children ages 28, 29, 30 and 32. I retired
to Fairbanks and plan on building a home in Salcha. I want to help build a better community for everyone to
live in.

Professional Licenses/Training:

I have a multitude of law enforcement certifications.

Demographics

Some boards and commissions require the demographics of membership to be proportionate to the general
public. The following information helps track our recruitment and diversity efforts.  NOTE: You must complete
each field but you may select "Prefer not to answer" if you do not wish to share your demographics. 

Ethnic ity

Political Party

Gender

Date of Birth

Sexual Orientation

Male

Agenda Packet - September 22, 2014 35 of 37



Agenda Packet - September 22, 2014 36 of 37



Agenda Packet - September 22, 2014 37 of 37


	AGENDA - September 22, 2014
	SPECIAL ORDERS
	Chauffeur License Appeal 

	UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	Ordinance No. 5957

	NEW BUSINESS
	Resolution No. 4643

	COMMUNICATIONS TO COUNCIL
	Clay Street Cemetery Commission Minutes - August 6, 2014
	Chena Riverfront Commission Meeting Minutes - August 13, 2014
	Appointment to the Hotel/Motel Discretionary Fund Committee

	CITY CLERK REPORT
	Approval of Election Judges for 2014 Municipal Election




